UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

)
)
In the Matter of )
)

UNIVERSAL MERCHANTS, INC.)

acorporation, and ) FILE NO. 952 3366
)

STEVEN OSCHEROWITZ, ) AGREEMENT CONTAINING
individually and as an officer ) CONSENT ORDER
of the corporation. )

)
)

The Federal Trade Commission has conducted an investigation of certain acts and
practices of Universal Merchants, Inc., a corporation, and Steven Oscherowitz, individually and
as an officer of the corporation ‘(proposed respondents$). Proposed respondents, having been
represented by counsel, are willing to enter into an agreement containing a consent order
resolving the allegations contained in the attached draft complaint. Therefore,

IT ISHEREBY AGREEDby and between Universal Merchants, Inc., by its duly
authorized officers, and Steven Oscherowitz, individually and as an officer of the corporation, and
counsel for the Federal Trade Commission that:

l.a  Proposed respondent Universal Merchants, Inc. is a Delaware corporation with its
principal office or place of business at 4727 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 510, Los Angles, CA 90010.

1.b. Proposed respondent Steven Oscherowitz is an officer of the corporate respondent.
Individually or in concert with others, he formulates, directs, or controls the policies, acts, or
practices of the corporation. His principal office or place of business is the same as that of
Universal Merchants, Inc.

2. Proposed respondents admit all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the draft complaint.
3. Proposed respondents waive:

a Any further procedural steps,
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b. The requirement that the Commissiois decision contain a statement of findings of
fact and conclusions of law; and

C. All rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to challenge or contest the validity
of the order entered pursuant to this agreement.

4, This agreement shall not become part of the public record of the proceeding unless and
until it is accepted by the Commission. If this agreement is accepted by the Commission, it,
together with the draft complaint, will be placed on the public record for a period of sixty (60)
days and information about it publicly released. The Commission thereafter may either withdraw
its acceptance of this agreement and so notify proposed respondents, in which event it will take
such action as it may consider appropriate, or issue and serve its complaint (in such form as the
circumstances may require) and decision in disposition of the proceeding.

5. This agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
proposed respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in the draft complaint, or that the
facts as alleged in the draft complaint, other than the jurisdictional facts, are true.

6. This agreement contemplates that, if it is accepted by the Commission, and if such
acceptance is not subsequently withdrawn by the Commission pursuant to the provisions of
Section 2.34 of the Commissiois Rules, the Commission may, without further notice to proposed
respondents, (1) issue its complaint corresponding in form and substance with the attached draft
complaint and its decision containing the following order in disposition of the proceeding, and (2)
make information about it public. When so entered, the order shall have the same force and effect
and may be altered, modified, or set aside in the same manner and within the same time provided
by statute for other orders. The order shall become final upon service. Delivery of the complaint
and the decision and order to proposed respondents by any means specified in Section 4.4 of the
Commissions Rules shall constitute service. Proposed respondents waive any right they may
have to any other manner of service. The complaint may be used in construing the terms of the
order. No agreement, understanding, representation, or interpretation not contained in the order
or in the agreement may be used to vary or contradict the terms of the order.

7. Proposed respondents have read the draft complaint and consent order. They understand
that they may be liable for civil penalties in the amount provided by law and other appropriate
relief for each violation of the order after it becomes final.

ORDER

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this order, the following definitions shall apply:
1. “Competent and reliable scientific evidenteshall mean tests, analyses, research, studies,

Page2 of 8



or other evidence based on the expertise of professionalsin the relevant area, that has been
conducted and evaluated in an objective manner by persons qualified to do so, using procedures
generally accepted in the profession to yield accurate and reliable results.

2. Unless otherwise specified;respondents shall mean Universal Merchants, Inc., a
corporation, its successors and assigns and its officers; Steven Oscherowitz, individually and as an
officer of the corporation; and each of the aboveagents, representatives, and employees.

3. “In or affecting commercéshall mean as defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C§ 44.

IT IS ORDERED that respondents, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
division, or other device, in connection with the manufacturing, labeling, advertising, promotion,
offering for sale, sale, or distribution of ChromaTrim or ChromaTrim-10@hromartrint) or any
food, dietary supplement, or drug, asfood” and “drug” are defined in Section 15 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act, in or affecting commerce, shall not represent, in any manner, expressly or
by implication, that:

A. ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat;

B. ChromaTrim causes significant weight |0ss;

C. Chroma_Tri m significantly reduces laty fat or causes weight loss without dieting
Or exercise;

D. ChromaTrim increases lean body mass or builds muscle;

E. ChromaTrim controls appetite or craving for sugar; or

F. Nine out of ten people do not consume enough chromium to support

normal insulin function, resulting in decreased ability to burn fat, preserve muscle,
and control hunger and cravings,

unless, at the time the representation is made, respondents possess and rely upon competent and
reliable scientific evidence that substantiates the representation.
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This order will terminate twenty (20) years from the date of its issuance, or twenty (20)
years from the most recent date that the United States or the Federal Trade Commission files a
complaint (with or without an accompanying consent decree) in federal court alleging any
violation of the order, whichever comes lateprovided, however that the filing of such a
complaint will not affect the duration of:

A. Any Part in this order that terminates in less than twenty (20) years;

B. This order's application to any respondent that is not named as a defendant in such
complaint; and

C. This order if such complaint isfiled after the order has terminated pursuant to this
Part.

Provided, further that if such complaint is dismissed or afederal court rules that the respondent
did not violate any provision of the order, and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or
upheld on appeal, then the order will terminate according to this Part as though the complaint had
never been filed, except that the order will not terminate between the date such complaint is filed
and the later of the deadline for appealing such dismissal or ruling and the date such dismissal or
ruling is upheld on appeal.

Signed this day of , 1996.

UNIVERSAL MERCHANTS, INC.

By: STEVEN OSCHEROWITZ
President

STEVEN OSCHEROWITZ, individually
and as an officer of the corporation

EDWARD F. GLYNN, JR.
Venable, Baetjer, Howard & Civiletti, LLP
Attorney for respondents
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APPROVED:

C. LEE PEELER
Associate Director
Division of Advertising Practices

JOAN Z. BERNSTEIN
Director
Bureau of Consumer Protection

RICHARD L. CLELAND
Counsel for the
Federal Trade Commission
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

)
)
In the M atter of )
)
UNIVERSAL MERCHANTS, INC.)
acorporation, and ) DOCKET NO.
)
STEVEN OSCHEROWITZ, )
individually and as an officer )
of the corporation. )
)
)
COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that Universal Merchants, Inc., a
corporation, and Steven Oscherowitz, individually and as an officer of the corporation
(“respondents), have violated the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and it
appearing to the Commission that this proceeding is in the public interest, alleges:

1. Respondent Universal Merchants, Inc. is a Delaware corporation with its principal office
or place of business at 4727 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 510, Los Angles, CA 90010.

2. Respondent Steven Oscherowitz is an officer of the corporate respondent. Individually or
in concert with others, he formulates, directs, or controls the policies, acts, or practices of the
corporation, including the acts or practices alleged in this complaint. His principal office or place
of businessis the same as that of Universal Merchants, Inc.

3. Respondents have manufactured, advertised, labeled, offered for sale, sold, and distributed
products to the public, including ChromaTrim and ChromaTrim-1000hromaTrint), chewing
gums containing chromium picolinate. ChromaTrim isdrug,” and/or “food,” within the

meaning of Sections 12 and 15 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

4. The acts and practices of respondents alleged in this complaint have been in or affecting
commerce, as‘commerce is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

5. Respondents have disseminated or have caused to be disseminated advertisements for

Pagel of 8



ChromaTrim, including but not necessarily limited to the attached Exhibits A and B. These
advertisements contain the following statements and depictions:

A.

“100% natural, ChromaTrim" is the sugar-free, fat-reducing chewing gum that is
proven to reduce body fat and decrease your appetite (especially sugar cravings).
ChromaTrim works fast and is extremely safe. ChromaTrlsective ingredient
Chromium Picolinate is so unique, s patented by the U.S.D.A”.

“No special diets, no tiring exercise, and no harmful chemicals, ChromaTrim is
simply the secret to successful fat loss. Guaranteed. The fact is, thousands of
formerly over-weight men and women have successfully changed their lives.

“I lost 40 poundswith ChromaTrim-100"[The advertisement depicts a slender
woman with the caption Belinda Woodruff.]

“I lost 35 pounds using ChromaTrim’ [The advertisement depicts awoman in
atwo-piece bathing suit with the caption Nicky Peters.]

(Exhibit A)

Susan Ruttan: “Thisis not another fad diet or crash program. ChromaTrimisa
chewing gum that contains chromium picolinate, avery special form of chromium.
Now chromium is an essential mineral like iron and zinc. Y our body needs it
every day. Itsimportant. And scientific research has shown that chromium works
with your bodys insulin, helping it to burn fat, preserve and build muscle, and
control cravings and hunger. And when your body gets the chromium it needs by
chewing ChromaTrim, listen to what can happeh(Exhibit B, p. 2)

VeronicaHall:“l lost 80 pounds. And | went down from a size 28, to asize 18.
(Exhibit B, p. 2)

DonnaAllison:“I’ve lost 36 pounds and | still have 20 or so more to lose.
(Exhibit B, p. 2)

Susan Ruttan: “So how do you know it can work for you? Well, according to the
U.S. Department of Agriculture, nine out of ten of us ddnget enough chromium
inour diet. . .. And if you dott get enough chromium in your diet, your body
natural system for burning fat, building muscle, and controlling cravingst going
to work as well asit should: (Exhibit B, p. 3)

Susan Ruttan: “And with this system you dot have to starve yourself, or sweat

buckets to see areal changée. (Exhibit B, p. 3)
Susan Ruttan: “The real goal isto keep and even build muscle, and burn off that
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by implication, that:

A.

B.

ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat.
ChromaTrim causes significant weight |oss.

ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat and causes weight loss without dieting
or exercise.

ChromaTrim increases lean body mass andud ds muscle.
ChromaTrim controls appetite and craving for sugar.
Testimonials from consumers appearing in the advertisements for ChromaTrim
reflect the typical or ordinary experience of members of the public who use the
product.

Nine out of ten people do not consume enough chromium to support

normal insulin function, resulting in decreased ability to burn fat, preserve muscle,
and control hunger and cravings.

7. Through the means described in Paragraph 5, respondents have represented, expressly or
by implication, that they possessed and relied upon a reasonable basis that substantiated the
representations set forth in Paragraph 6, at the time the representations were made.

8. In truth and in fact, respondents did not possess and rely upon a reasonable basis that
substantiated the representations set forth in Paragraph 6, at the time the representations were
made. Therefore, the representation set forth in Paragraph 7 was, and is, false or misleading.

9. Through the means described in Paragraph 5, respondents have represented, expressly or
by implication, that scientific studies demonstrate that:

A.

B.

ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat.
ChromaTrim causes significant weight |oss.

ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat and causes weight loss without dieting
or exercise.

ChromaTrim increases lean body mass and builds muscle.

ChromaTrim controls appetite and craving for sugar.
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10. In truth and in fact, scientific studies do not demonstrate that

A. ChromaTrim significantly reduces body fat.

B. ChromaTrim causes significant weight |oss.

C. Chroma_Tri m significantly reduces body fat and causes weight loss without dieting
or exercise.

D. ChromaTrim increases lean body mass and builds muscle.

E. ChromaTrim controls appetite and craving for sugar.

Therefore, the representations set forth in Paragraph 9 were, and are, false or misleading.

11.  Theacts and practices of respondents as alleged ithis complaint constitute unfair or
deceptive acts or practices, and the making of false advertisements, in or affecting commerce in
violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

Therefore, the Federal Trade Commission this  day of , 1996 has issued this
complaint against respondents.

By the Commission.

Donald S. Clark
Secretary

SEAL:

[Exhibits A-B attached to paper copies of complaint, but not available in electronic form.]
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Nutrition Labeling and Education Act. Part VII requires proposed respondents to maintain

certain records for five years, and Part V111 requires proposed respondents to distribute a copy of
the order to certain persons who have responsibilities subject to the order. Part IX requires the
corporate respondent to notify the Commission of any changes in the corporation that may affect
compliance with the order and Part X requires that Steven Oscherowitz notify the Commission of
changes in employment or of his affiliation with any new employment. This provision is effective
for five years. Part X1 requires that the proposed respondents file a compliance report and Part
XI1 sunsets the proposed order at twenty years under certain circumstances.

The purpose of this analysisisto facilitate public comment on the proposed order, and it is

not intended to constitute an official interpretation of the agreement and proposed order or to
modify in any way their terms.
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